Once-Thriving Newville Only a Memory
The Mansfield That Was

By VIRGIL A. STANFIELD

Newville. which once had
ideas of outstripping Mans-
field as a Richland County
metropolis. disappeared
more than 30 years ago.

The litlle village, located
in one of the most beautiful
valleys in Ohio, was found-
ed in 1823 and reached its
peak of prosperity more
than a century ago.

John Frederick Herring,
a Pennsylvanian who had
made some money in the
milling business in southern
Richland County. pilotted
the village on the Clear
Fork and named it for his
native town in Pennsylvan-
1a.

*

Mansfield was only 15
years old at the time and
had only a few hundred in-
habitants. T he railroads
hadn’'t arrived and the
roads in and out of the
counly seat town were only
trails through the forest.

Herring had operated a
grist mill west of Bellville
. and then another some 15
miles downstream along
the Clear Fork. Abraham
Nye, a friend of Herring's,
had recently arrived in the
county and he liked the
country along the Clear
Fork. He saw the wild spot
between the picturesque
bluffs as an ideal site for a
town.

Herring was sold on the
plan and became the found-
er of Newville. Along with
Herring and Nye the early
settlers included Luther
Richard, Daniel Stoner, Mi-
chael Hogan, Daniel Car-
penter and Daniel Armen-
trout.

*

Nye opened the first hotel
and Hogan became the first
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A hotel in Newville around the turn of the century was the German House. 1f was oper-
ated by Mr. and Mrs. Henry Reiter, shown here with their daughter, Miss Sylvia Reiter.
Mr. and Mrs. Reiler were grandparents of Mrs. Russell McCue, 637 Kirkwood Dr., who

merchant.  Stoner oepened
the first blacksmith shop.
Al that time a blacksmith
was an important business-
man in the town.

Newville started to grow
as more adventurers came
up the Clear Ifork {rom the
Mohican and Muskingum
Rivers.

They were hardy people
ready for the rough life of
the {rontier. Herring
showed how determined the
Newville people were when
he drove a team of horses
to Baltimore, Md.. and
back to get equipment for a
mill. It was a 1,000 - mile

provided this photo.

roundtrip and took two
months.

*
Others among the first

citizens of the county made
the Baltimore trip to mar-
ket the products they found
in the forests. Among these
items which brought good
prices in the east were ma-
ple sugar. beeswax and gin-
seng.

During the period around
1830 Newville was the reli-
gious center of the county
with several churches and
ministers who were oul-
standing as orators.

Two of these men of the

gospel  were Thomas and
Sidney  Rigdon. Dbrothers.
Sidney, spokesman for the
Disciples religious order,
was considered one of the
finest orators in the state.

He soon outgrew Newville
and -along with several fol-
lowers moved westward to
Nauvoo, [ll., Mormon head-
quarters at that time.

*

As other nearhy commu-
nities bhegan to grow New-
ville lost ils fame as a
church town and by the
early 1900s only one church
remained.

The community was the

home of several prominent
men in the mid and late
1800s.

Samuel J. Kirkwood, one
of the early teachers in
Newville, later became
mayor of Mansfield and
from here moved on to
Iowa where he served as
governor and then as a
U.S. Senator. While he was
in Manstield he practiced
law with Judge Thomas
Bartley, later to be a gov-
ernor of Ohlo.

So 1wo Manslielders in
the same law firm in the
1840 era moved up to gov-
ernorships in  Ohio and
Towa. .

*

Joscph Musgrave, one -
time Newville wmerchant,
left to enter polilics in Ash-
land County. He was elect-
ed to the stale senate in the
1850s.

While John Peter Altgeld,
fiery and controversial gov-
crnor of [llinois, late in the
19th century is somectimes
called a Newville boy, he
didn’t  spend much time
there. He lived nearby,
however, after his parents
came here from the east
while he was still a youth.

Newville had the usual
shops and taverns of the
small frontier town, but it
never became much of an
industrial center. The
prime reason was the ab-
sence of railroads. The B
and O and Pennsylvania
both missed the village and
probably ruined any hopes
it had of overtaking Mans-
field.

The village did have a
pennyroyal distillery, how-
ever. which perfumed ihe
valley on both sides of the
town. Pennyroyal is an aro-
matic plant with a pungent
taste. The oil from it is dis-
tilled to make a medicine.

*

After the railroads
crossed the counly in the
1840s and 50s. leaving New-
ville all alone in its rustic
selting, the town started
downhill. At one lime it
had a population of several
hundred persons. By 1880
the population was down to .
ahout 300.

Mrs. R. R. McCue, 637
Kirkwood Dr., said her
grandparents, Mr. and Mrs.
Henry Reiter, operated the
German House, a small
Newville hotel, for several
years.

Until its final years the
village had at least one ho-
tel to serve the horse and
buggy f{ravelers and the
drummers who came 1o
town.

When the Muskingum
Conservancy Distriet and
its system of lakes was cre-
ated in the 1930s, Newville
had dwindled to a {tiny
community of a church and
a few houses.

Because of ils sile along
the Clear Fork, it stood in
the way of the proposed
Pleasant Hill lake. So New-
ville had to go. Its church
and houses were moved o
higher ground and the wa-
ters of the lake now cover
the spot where the band of
rugged settlers had hoped
to build a thriving cily.
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